NOVA SCOTIA REGULATOR OF PARAMEDICINE

Board Governance Manual



Property of:

Nova Scotia Regulator of Paramedicine www.nsrop.ca

Board Approved: October 28, 2023 Implemented: October 28, 2023 Board Revised: May 29, 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Acknowledgements	5
Introduction	6
1.0 Mega End	9
2.0 Executive Limitations	9
2.1 Treatment of Public, Registrants, and Interested Parties	9
2.2 Corporate Working Conditions	10
2.3 Financial Planning/Budgeting	10
2.4 Financial Condition and Activities	11
2.5 Asset Protection	11
2.6 Compensation and Benefits	13
2.7 Communication and Support of the Board	13
2.8 Corporate Culture	14
2.9 Development of Regulatory Tools, Education Program Standards With Criteria And Re-Entry Programs	15
2.10 Requirements for Legislation Governing The Regulation Of Paramedicine In Nova Scotia	15
2.11 Fees/Penalties/Fines	16
2.12 Approval of Registration Examination	16
2.13 Membership on External Boards	17
2.14 Reserve Funds	17
3.0 Global Governance Process/Commitment	18
3.1 Board Values	18
3.2 Governance Style	18
3.3 Board Code of Conduct	19
3.4 Board Job Description	21
3.5 Role of the CHAIR	23
3.6 Recruiting Candidates for Board and Committees	25
3.7 Committee Authority, Structure and Principles	26
3.8 Expense Reimbursement & Remuneration	27
3.9 Disclosure of Minutes	29
3.10 Board Meeting Agenda and Yearly Planning Cycle	30
3.11 Board Linkage to Owners	32
3.12 Board Linkage with Interested parties and Organizations	33
3.13 Investment in Governance	33

4.0 Global Board-Management Delegation	35
4.1 Unity of Control Board-Management Delegation	35
4.2 Accountability of the Executive Director/Registrar	35
4.3 Delegation to the Executive Director/Registrar	35
4.4 Executive Director/Registrar Compensation and Benefits	36
4.5 Monitoring Organizational Performance	37
4.6 Executive Director/Registrar Recruitment and Hiring	38
Appendix 1 - Board Meeting Agenda and Yearly Planning Cycle Sample Board Agenda	40
Appendix 2 – Sample Board Meeting Agenda and Yearly Planning Cycle Schedule	44
Appendix 3 – Board Meeting Self-Monitoring	45
Appendix 4 – Conflict of Interest Screening Tool	46
Schedule 1 – Record of Policy Review	49

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Nova Scotia Regulator of Paramedicine (NSRoP) acknowledges that we are in Mi'kma'ki, the ancestral and unceded territory of the Mi'kmaq People and pays respect to the Indigenous knowledges held by the Mi'kmaq People, and to the wisdom of their Elders past and present. The Mi'kmaq People signed Peace and Friendship Treaties with the Crown, and section 35 of the Constitution Act, 1982 recognizes and affirms Aboriginal and Treaty Rights.

We are all Treaty People!

NSRoP also acknowledges the histories, contributions, and legacies of African Nova Scotians, who have been here for over 400 years.

NSRoP recognizes and appreciates, the assistance of the Nova Scotia College of Nursing in providing our organization with permission to reference their Board Policy Manual in the development of NSRoPs Board Governance Manual.

INTRODUCTION

With the passage of the Order-in-Council 2024-181 on May 30, 2024, the College of Paramedics of Nova Scotia (CPNS) was continued as the Nova Scotia Regulator of Paramedicine (the "Regulator" or "NSRoP") under the *Regulated Health Profession Act*, SNS 2023, c 15 and continued to be entrusted with the responsibility of regulating the practice of paramedicine. The Legacy Board decided at the October 18, 2019, Session 17 meeting to adopt the Policy Governance Model by John Carver. As the governing body, our policies govern the Regulator and regulate the practice of paramedicine in the public interest. By focusing on effective governance, we ensure our accountability to the people of Nova Scotia.

Policy Governance

Policy Governance is a comprehensive set of integrated principles that, when consistently applied, allows governing boards to realize owner-accountable organizations.

Policy Governance integrates a number of unique principles designed to enable accountable board leadership.

Principles of Policy Governance

- 1. Ownership: The board exists to act as the informed voice and agent of the owners, whether they are owners in a legal or moral sense. All owners are stakeholders, but not all stakeholders are owners, only those whose position in relation to an organization is equivalent to the position of shareholders in a for-profit corporation.
- 2. Position of Board: The board is accountable to owners that the organization is successful. As such it is not advisory to staff but an active link in the chain of command. All authority in the staff organization and in components of the board flows from the board.
- 3. Board Holism: The authority of the board is held and used as a body. The board speaks with one voice in that instructions are expressed by the board as a whole. Individual board members have no authority to instruct staff.
- 4. Ends Policies: The board defines in writing its expectations about the intended effects to be produced, the intended recipients of those effects, and the intended worth (cost-benefit or priority) of the effects. These are Ends policies. All decisions made about effects, recipients, and worth are Ends decisions. All decisions about issues that do not fit the definition of Ends are means decisions. Hence in Policy Governance, means are simply not Ends.
- 5. Board Means Policies: The board defines in writing the job results, practices, delegation style, and discipline that make up its own job. These are board means decisions, categorized as Governance Process policies and Board- Management Delegation policies.

- 6. Executive Limitations Policies: The board defines in writing its expectations about the means of the operational organization. However, rather than prescribing board-chosen means -- which would enable the CEO to escape accountability for attaining Ends, these policies define limits on operational means, thereby placing boundaries on the authority granted to the CEO. In effect, the board describes those means that would be unacceptable even if they were to work. These are Executive Limitations policies.
- 7. Policy Sizes: The board decides its policies in each category first at the broadest, most inclusive level. It further defines each policy in descending levels of detail until reaching the level of detail at which it is willing to accept any reasonable interpretation by the applicable delegatee of its words thus far. Ends, Executive Limitations, Governance Process, and Board-Management Delegation policies are exhaustive in that they establish control over the entire organization, both board and staff. They replace, at the board level, more traditional documents such as mission statements, strategic plans and budgets.
- 8. Clarity and Coherence of Delegation: The identification of any delegatee must be unambiguous as to authority and responsibility. No subparts of the board, such as committees or officers, can be given jobs that interfere with, duplicate, or obscure the job given to the CEO.
- 9. Any Reasonable interpretation: More detailed decisions about Ends and operational means are delegated to the CEO if there is one. If there is no CEO, the board must delegate to two or more delegatees, avoiding overlapping expectations or causing confusion about the authority of various managers. In the case of board means, delegation is to the CGO unless part of the delegation is explicitly directed elsewhere, for example, to a committee. The delegatee has the right to use any reasonable interpretation of the applicable board policies.
- 10. Monitoring: The board must monitor organizational performance against previously stated Ends policies and Executive Limitations policies. Monitoring is for the purpose of discovering if the organization achieved a reasonable interpretation of these board policies. The board must therefore judge the CEO's interpretation for its reasonableness, and the data demonstrating the accomplishment of the interpretation. The ongoing monitoring of board's Ends and Executive Limitations policies constitutes the CEO's performance evaluation.

All other practices, documents, and disciplines must be consistent with the above principles. For example, if an outside authority demands board actions inconsistent with Policy Governance, the board should use a 'required approvals agenda' or other device to be lawful without compromising governance.

Policy Governance is a precision system that promises excellence in governance only if used with precision. These governance principles form a seamless paradigm or model. As with a

clock, removing one wheel may not spoil its looks but will seriously damage its ability to tell time. So, in Policy Governance, all the above pieces must be in place for Policy Governance to be effective. When all brought into play, they allow for a governing board to realize owner accountability. When they are not used completely, true owner accountability is not available.

Adapted from "Policy Governance© Source Document," Govern for Impact, <u>April 25, 2025, source document.pdf</u> <u>www.qovernforimpact.org/assets/article-pdfs/PG%20source%20document.pdf</u>

1.0 MEGA END

- 1. People in Nova Scotia receive safe, competent, ethical, and professional paramedicine services at a justifiable cost that the Regulatory Body can sustain.
- 1.1 Individuals and families experience physical, psychological, and social safety as an integral component of paramedicine services.
- 1.2 Individuals, families, and communities have their health issues diagnosed and managed confidently and competently, meeting their expectations for paramedicine services.
 - 1.2.1 The public is confident that those engaged in paramedicine services maintain their competence.
- 1.3 Individuals, families and communities receive socially responsive care.
- 1.4 Effective regulation results in public confidence in professional paramedicine services.
 - 1.4.1 Complainants experience timely, professional, and respectful responses.
 - 1.4.2 The public is safe from harm due to incompetence, impairment, and/or unethical practices.

2.0 EXECUTIVE LIMITATIONS

2. The Executive Director/Registrar shall not cause or allow in the organization any practice, activity, decision, or circumstance that is either unlawful, imprudent, or in violation of; the *Regulated Health Professions Act, General Regulations and* or Regulator Bylaws or commonly accepted business and professional ethics and practices.

2.1 TREATMENT OF PUBLIC, REGISTRANTS, AND INTERESTED PARTIES

- 2.1. The Executive Director/Registrar shall not cause or allow conditions, procedures or decisions that are unprofessional, unfair, or discourteous. Without limiting policy statement 2.1, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:
 - 2.1.1. Operate without processes to respond to registrants, public and interested parties fairly, consistently, respectfully, and in a timely manner.
 - 2.1.2. Use methods of collecting, reviewing, storing, or transmitting personal information that inadequately protect against improper access or disclosure of the information.

2.2 CORPORATE WORKING CONDITIONS

- 2.2 The Executive Director/Registrar shall not allow working conditions for staff that are unprofessional, unfair, discourteous, unsafe, or unclear. Further, without limiting the scope of statement 2.2 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:
- 2.2.1 Operate without Human Resources policies that clarify personnel procedures for staff, provide for effective handling of disagreements, conflicts, and respect in the workplace issues, and protect against wrongful conditions and improper handling of personal information.
- 2.2.2 Discriminate against any staff member.
- 2.2.3 Permit staff to be unacquainted with their rights and responsibilities under this policy.
- 2.2.4 Allow staff to be unprepared to deal with emergency situations.

2.3 FINANCIAL PLANNING/BUDGETING

- 2.3 The Executive Director/Registrar shall not permit planning that allocates resources in a way that deviates materially from Board-stated Ends priorities, that risks fiscal jeopardy or fails to show a generally accepted level of foresight. Further, without limiting the scope of policy statement 2.3 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:
- 2.3.1 Operate without a multi-year strategic plan that can be expected to achieve a reasonable interpretation of the Ends.
- 2.3.2 Permit planning to omit regular analysis of strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats, including external environmental issues, which may impact the organization's short- and long-term future.
- 2.3.3 Permit budgeting for any fiscal period or the remaining part of any fiscal period that is not derived from the strategic plan.
- 2.3.4 Permit financial planning that omits credible projection of revenues and expenses, separation of capital expenditures and operational expenses, cash flow projections, and disclosure of planning assumptions.
- 2.3.5 Plan the expenditure in any fiscal year of more funds than are available, without the Board's approval.
- 2.3.6 Permit financial planning that does not provide the amount determined annually by the Board for the Board's direct use during the year, such as costs of fiscal audit, Board development, Board and Committee meetings, Board legal fees and ownership linkage.
- 2.3.7 Permit planning that endangers the fiscal soundness of future years or ignores the building of organizational capacity sufficient to achieve Ends in future years. Further, without limiting the scope of policy statement 2.3.7 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:

- 2.3.7.1 Operate without succession planning processes in place to facilitate smooth operations during key personnel transitions and ensure competent operation of the organization in all areas over the short and long term.
- 2.3.7.2 Permit the organization to be without sufficient organizational capacity for the operation of the organization to continue in the event of sudden loss of ED/Registrar services.

2.4 FINANCIAL CONDITION AND ACTIVITIES

- 2.4 With respect to the actual, ongoing condition of the organization's financial health, the Executive Director/Registrar may not cause or allow the development of fiscal jeopardy nor a material deviation of actual expenditures from the Board's priorities established in Ends. Further, without limiting the scope of policy statement 2.4 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:
- 2.4.1 Expend more funds (cash and investments) than are available. Further without limiting the scope of policy statement 2.4.1 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:
- 2.4.1.1 Fail to provide the Board with quarterly financial updates on the organizations budget versus actual variance details.
- 2.4.2 Allow the liquidity reserve to drop below an amount equal to three months of the previous year's actual operating expenses, with an adjustment for non-cash and externally funded expenditures.
- 2.4.3 Allow tax payments or other government-ordered payments or filings to be overdue, incomplete, or inaccurately filed.
- 2.4.4 Fail to settle payroll and debts in a timely manner.

2.5 ASSET PROTECTION

- 2.5 The Executive Director/Registrar may not allow assets to be unprotected, inadequately maintained, or unnecessarily risked. Further, without limiting the scope of policy statement2.5 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:
- 2.5.1 Permit the organization to be without insurance against theft, fire, and casualty losses to at least the actual cash value.
- 2.5.2 Permit the Board members, staff and individuals engaged in activities on behalf of the Regulator, or the organization itself to be without liability insurance in an amount recommended by the Regulator's insurer and confirmed to be the current industry standard for comparable organizations in the Regulator's sector.

- 2.5.3 Operate without adequate safeguards to protect intellectual property, information and files from loss or significant damage, including protecting the value of intellectual property by seeking appropriate compensation for use of intellectual property, entering into appropriate licensing agreements, and registering copyright material and trademarks when appropriate.
- 2.5.4 Subject building and equipment to improper wear and tear or insufficient maintenance.
- 2.5.5 Unnecessarily expose the organization, its Board or Staff to claims of liability or loss.
- 2.5.6 Operate without appropriate designated signing authorities that includes the ED/Registrar, the Chair, the Vice Chair and one other Board member.
- 2.5.7 Permit expenditures (via cheque or electronic payments) to be without two authorized signatures.
- 2.5.8 Make any purchase without due consideration to quality, after-purchase service, value for the dollar, and opportunity for fair competition. Orders shall not be split to avoid these criteria. Further, without limiting the scope of policy statement 2.5.8 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:
 - 2.5.8.1 Make any purchase wherein normally prudent protection has not been given against conflict of interest.
 - 2.5.8.2 Make any purchase of over \$5,000 without having obtained comparative prices and quality.
 - 2.5.8.3 Make any capital expenditure over \$5000 without having obtained:
 - Comparative prices and quality.
 - Board approval.
 - 2.5.8.4 Enter into any one contract that results in a cumulative Regulator commitment of greater than \$15,000, not included in the annual budget or otherwise approved by the Board.
- 2.5.9 Compromise the independence of the Board's audit or other external monitoring or advice.
- 2.5.10 Operate without internal policies and procedures that address risk to the regulator.
- 2.5.11 Receive, process, or disburse the Regulator's assets under internal controls which are insufficient to prevent and detect significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.
- 2.5.12 Make investments on behalf of the Regulator which do not reflect maximization of revenue while preserving safety of principal and meeting liquidity requirements. Further, without limiting the scope of policy statement 2.5.12 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:

- 2.5.12.1 Make investments in term deposits other than with Canadian Chartered Banks or Credit Unions.
- 2.5.12.2 Make investments in mutual funds held other than low risk balanced funds.
- 2.5.12.3 Neglect to diversify mutual fund holdings over various reputable fund managers.
- 2.5.13 Acquire, encumber (mortgage), lease or dispose of real property (real estate) without the Board's knowledge and approval given via a Board motion.
- 2.5.14 Make any unbudgeted purchase or commitment greater than 2 years.

2.6 COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

- 2.6 With respect to employment, compensation, and benefits for all Regulator full-time, part-time, term contract employees and volunteers, the Executive Director/Registrar may not cause or allow jeopardy to fiscal integrity or public image. Further, without limiting the scope of policy statement 2.6 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:
- 2.6.1 Change the Executive Director/Registrar's own compensation and benefits.
- 2.6.2 Promise or imply guaranteed employment.
- 2.6.3 Establish current compensation and benefits which deviate materially from the market competitiveness for the skills employed.
- 2.6.4 Establish or change pension benefits.

2.7 COMMUNICATION AND SUPPORT OF THE BOARD

- 2.7 With respect to providing information and support to the Board, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not permit the Board to be uninformed. Further, without limiting the scope of the policy statement 2.7 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:
- 2.7.1 Allow the Board to be without adequate information to support informed Board choices, including environmental scanning data, a representative range of staff and external points of view, significant issues or changes within the external environment which may have a bearing on any existing Board policies, along with alternative choices and their respective implications.
- 2.7.2 Neglect to submit monitoring data or other information required by the Board in a timely, accurate and understandable fashion.
- 2.7.3 Let the Board be unaware of any actual or anticipated non-compliance with any Ends or Executive Limitations policy, regardless of the Board monitoring schedule.

- 2.7.4 Let the Board be unaware of any incidental information it requires, including anticipated media coverage, threatened, or pending lawsuits, and material or publicly visible external and internal changes or events, including changes in senior personnel.
- 2.7.5 The Board to be without a mechanism for official Board, officer, or committee communications.
- 2.7.6 Deal with the Board in a way that favours or privileges certain Board members over others except when:
- 2.7.6.1 Fulfilling individual requests for information, or
- 2.7.6.2 Responding to officers or committees duly charged by the Board.
- 2.7.7 Give information to the Board that is not clearly identified as either information for Decision, for Discussion, for Information, or for Monitoring.
- 2.7.8 Neglect to supply for the Required Approvals agenda all items required by law, regulation, or contract to be Board-approved, along with the applicable monitoring information, including but not limited to selection of registrants for appointment to regulatory committees.
- 2.7.9 Allow the Board to be without reasonable administrative support for the Board's activities.
- 2.7.10 Fail to communicate in a timely manner to the Board when the regulator is asked for a response in the media.
- 2.7.11 Fail to attend all Board meetings, recognizing the Executive Director/Registrar is an Exofficio and non-voting participant at Board meetings.

2.8 CORPORATE CULTURE

- 2.8 The Executive Director/Registrar shall not cause or allow damage to the Regulator's integrity and reputation, thus compromising its ability to achieve Ends. Further, without limiting the scope of policy statement 2.8 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:
- 2.8.1 Fail to be committed to creating a respectful, equitable, and inclusive corporate culture, fostering an experience of belonging and promoting culturally aware, safe, and equitable treatment for all.
- 2.8.2 Enter into, or accept, sponsorship or funding activities or agreements with any organization whose corporate culture, or their products or services, when used appropriately, are hazardous to individuals or the environment, that directly relate to or conflict with the objects of the Regulator, pose known risks to the public or environment, or otherwise undermine the Regulator's credibility or independence.

2.9 DEVELOPMENT OF REGULATORY TOOLS, EDUCATION PROGRAM STANDARDS WITH CRITERIA AND RE-ENTRY PROGRAMS

- 2.9 The Executive Director/Registrar shall not recommend to the Board the development of or changes to the code of ethics, standards of practice, mandatory standards of practice, competency frameworks, continuing-competence programs, practice guidelines, (collectively called "regulatory tools") or the education program standards with criteria and re-entry programs (collectively called "documents requiring Board approval) without due consideration to all relevant information and appropriate consultation. Further, without limiting the scope of policy statement 2.9 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:
- 2.9.1 Recommend the development of documents requiring Board approval without consideration of relevant research findings and literature.
- 2.9.2 Recommend the development of documents requiring Board approval without a specific review of compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
- 2.9.3 Recommend the development of any individual document requiring Board approval that is inconsistent with any of the other regulatory tools.
- 2.9.4 Recommend the development of documents requiring Board approval without obtaining the input of a range of registrants, with a mix of relevant expertise, using methods that are open and transparent.
- 2.9.5 Neglect consideration of the perspective of other regulatory bodies, organizations, and groups that may be impacted.
- 2.9.6 Omit a reasonable validation process.
- 2.9.7 Neglect to advise the Board if there are contentious issues related to the proposed documents requiring Board approval.
- 2.9.8 Neglect to bring the document requiring Board approval to the Board for approval prior to release.
- 2.9.9 Neglect to establish an effective date that includes a communication and education plan, as required, with registrants and relevant interested parties.

2.10 REQUIREMENTS FOR LEGISLATION GOVERNING THE REGULATION OF PARAMEDICINE IN NOVA SCOTIA

2.10 The Executive Director/Registrar shall not fail to manage and execute the requirements under the Regulated Health Professions Act, General Regulations, Paramedicine Regulations, and Bylaws, or any other legislation impacting the regulation of paramedicine in Nova Scotia. Further, without limiting the scope of policy statement 2.10 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:

- 2.10.1 Fail to ensure all reporting requirements meet deadlines, have prior review and approval of the Board as needed and are accurate and complete. Further, without limiting the scope of policy statement 2.10.1 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:
 - 2.10.1.1 Fail to submit the Quality Assurance Plan for Board's review in a timely way prior to submission to the Minister of Health and Wellness.
 - 2.10.1.2 Inform the Board of any issues with compliance and propose an action plan to respond to any non-compliance issues."
 - 2.10.1.3 Fail to submit an annual report on the operations and outcomes of the Regulator to the Minister of Health and Wellness and to post on the website."
- 2.10.2 Fail to advise the Board of any challenges in interpreting and implementing the Act, Regulations and By-Laws and any other relevant legislation."
- 2.10.3 Fail to propose any amendments to the Act, Regulations and By-laws without first informing the Board and seeking their approval."
- 2.10.4 Allow any risks to go unmanaged in relation to the requirements under the Regulated Health Professions Act, General Regulations, Paramedicine Regulations, or Bylaws.

2.11 FEES/PENALTIES/FINES

- 2.11 The Executive Director/Registrar shall not cause or allow unfair or inconsistent administration of fees/penalties/fines to registrants. Further, without limiting the scope of policy statement 2.11 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:
- 2.11.1 Change registration and licensing fees, without the Board's approval.
- 2.11.2 Set administrative fees above the amount needed to recover costs.
- 2.11.3 Change the applicable penalties for licensing renewal, without the Board's approval.
- 2.11.4 Permit fines and penalties to exceed those permitted within the Bylaws.
- 2.11.5 Provide less than 60 days 'notice to registrants regarding increases in fees.

2.12 APPROVAL OF REGISTRATION EXAMINATION

2.12 The Executive Director/Registrar shall not implement or change a registration examination prior to the Board's approval based on evidence of compliance with this policy and shall not bring forward for approval a registration examination that does not provide assurance that it assesses the new practitioner for safe, competent, ethical practice in Canada or negatively impacts labour mobility across Canada. Further, without limiting the scope of policy statement 2.12 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall

not enter into a contract with a vendor for an EMR, PCP, or ACP registration examination that does not address the following criteria, in that it:

- 2.12.1 Is not based upon current entry-level competencies for Nova Scotia.
- 2.12.2 Does not include Canadian content experts at all levels of the item development, review, and differential analysis of results.
- 2.12.3 Is not based on consultation with other jurisdictions across Canada in selecting the examination to be brought forward for the Board's approval.
- 2.12.4 Does not provide the highest level of exam security at an affordable cost for the candidate and the Regulator.
- 2.12.5 Is not accessible to candidates within Nova Scotia throughout the year, with provision for timely results.
- 2.12.6 Exposes the Regulator to any unmanageable risk.

2.13 MEMBERSHIP ON EXTERNAL BOARDS

- 2.13 The Executive Director/Registrar shall not become a member on an external board that endangers the regulatory autonomy of the Regulator. Further without limiting the scope of policy statement 2.13 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:
- 2.13.1 Vote on any issues that have the potential to impact the regulatory autonomy of the Regulator, or its fiscal integrity, prior to such matters being presented for direction from the Board.

2.14 RESERVE FUNDS

- 2.14 The Executive Director/Registrar shall not cause or allow the Regulator to be unprotected against unforeseen loss of income, unexpected events, or unanticipated expenses by not establishing, fully resourcing, and maintaining a reserve fund for purposes such as but not limited to legal expenses, maintenance of operations, database development, standards development, competence framework development, etc. Further, without limiting the scope of the above statement the Executive Director/Registrar shall not:
- 2.14.1 Allow the reserve funds not to receive funding from any surplus operating funds as recommended by the Executive Director and directed by the Board on a yearly basis. Further without limiting the scope of policy statement 2.14.1 by the following list, the Executive Director/Registrar shall not allow the minimum in reserve funds not to include a dollar amount that is equivalent to up to twelve months of the Regulators operating budget.

- 2.14.2 Allow the value of all the reserves funds to be unprotected. Further without limiting the scope of policy statement 2.14.2 by the following list, the Executive Director shall be responsible for assuring the value of all the reserve funds are not unprotected by:
 - 2.14.2.1 Maintaining them in separate savings accounts and investments from the operating revenues.
 - 2.14.2.2 Investing all interest earned on the capital in the designated reserved funds back into those funds.
- 2.14.3 Expend reserve funds without the Board's approval.

3.0 GLOBAL GOVERNANCE PROCESS/COMMITMENT

The Board, in the interest of the public in Nova Scotia, governs the Regulatory body and the profession of paramedicine in accordance with the *Regulated Health Professions Act of Nova Scotia, General Regulations and Paramedicine Regulations*, Regulator Bylaws and policies. The purpose of the Board is to see that the Regulator achieves appropriate results at an appropriate cost and avoids unacceptable actions and situations through its own governance.

3.1 BOARD VALUES

- 3.1 The Board works together to develop the Regulator's Mission, Vision, and Ends to meet the needs of the public. The Board's governance work is grounded in values that guide performance and decision making. The Board's values include:
- 3.1.1 Compassion for everyone.
- 3.1.2 Integrity doing the right thing even when people are not looking.
- 3.1.3 Innovation remaining open to possibilities; demonstrating critical thinking; taking appropriate risks; and encouraging innovation to improve outcomes.
- 3.1.4 Accountability to the public, government, registrants, and interested parties.
- 3.1.5 Fairness impartiality and fairness in how we do our work and treat those with whom we represent and interact.

3.2 GOVERNANCE STYLE

- 3.2 The Board will govern lawfully and approach its' tasks with an emphasis on:
 - Outward vision to the public and registrants rather than internal preoccupation.
 - Encouraging diversity of viewpoints.
 - Strategic leadership more than administrative detail.

- A clear distinction between the Board and Executive Director/Registrar roles.
- Collective rather than individual decisions.
- The future, not the past or present.
- Being proactive, rather than reactive.
- Monitoring, as well as making and modifying policy.
- 3.2.1 Further without limiting the scope of policy statement 3.2 by the following list, in order to adhere to these principles, the Board will strive to achieve the following goals:
 - 3.2.1.1 Cultivate a sense of group responsibility. The Board itself, not the staff, will be responsible for excellence in governance. The Board will be the initiator of policy, not merely a reactor to staff initiatives. The Board will not use the expertise of individual members to substitute for the judgement of the Board, although the expertise of individual members may be used to enhance the understanding of the Board as a body.
 - 3.2.1.2 Direct, control, and inspire the organization through the careful establishment of the Board's written policies reflecting the Board's values and perspectives. The Board's major policy focus will be on the intended long-term impacts of those policies and not on the administrative or programmatic means of attaining those impacts.
 - 3.2.1.3 Enforce upon itself whatever discipline is needed to govern with excellence. Discipline will apply to matters such as attendance, preparation for meetings, policymaking principles, respect of roles, and ensuring the continuance of governance capability. Although the Board can change its Governance Process policies at any time, it will scrupulously observe those currently in force.
 - 3.2.1.4 Ensure continuous Board development will include orientation of new Board members in the Board's governance process and periodic Board discussion of process improvement.
 - 3.2.1.5 Allow no officer, individual, or committee of the Board to hinder or serve as an excuse for not fulfilling group obligations.
 - 3.2.1.6 Monitor and discuss the Board's process and performance at each meeting (See Appendix 3—Board Meeting Self-monitoring). Self-monitoring will include comparing Board activity and discipline in policies in the Governance Process and Board-Management Delegation categories.

3.3 BOARD CODE OF CONDUCT

3.3 The Board commits itself to ethical, professional, and lawful conduct, including proper use of authority and appropriate decorum. The Board members are expected:

- 3.3.1 To conduct themselves in a manner that is in keeping with the values outlined in GP-3.1 (Board Values).
- 3.3.2 To publicly support all of the decisions, policies and position statements taken by the Board. The principle of "one voice" will apply.
- 3.3.3 To act as fiduciaries and be loyal to the interest of the public of Nova Scotia. This accountability supersedes any personal interest or conflicting loyalty such as to advocacy or interest groups and members on other boards or staffs.
- 3.3.4 To be transparent and avoid any conflict of interest with respect to their fiduciary responsibility by ensuring:
 - 3.3.4.1 There must be no conduct of private business or personal services between any Board member and the Regulator.
 - 3.3.4.2 When a Board member has an unavoidable conflict of interest with any Regulator matter, that member shall abstain from the deliberations and voting. In such situations the conflict of interest will be noted in the minutes.
 - 3.3.4.3 Board members annually disclose their involvement with other organizations that might produce a conflict or perceived conflict. Other organizations include, but are not limited to for profit, not-for-profit, and charitable organizations. (Reference Appendix 4 Conflict of Interest Screening Tool)
- 3.3.5 To be familiar with the *Regulated Health Professions Act, General Regulations and the Regulations Respecting Paramedicine*, Regulator bylaws and Board Policies.
- 3.3.6 Not to use their position to obtain employment for themselves, family members or personal friends with the Regulator. Should a Board member wish to be considered for employment with the Regulator, they must first resign from the Board.
- 3.3.7 Not to direct the Executive Director/Registrar, or other staff, and must recognize the lack of authority vested in them as individuals except when explicitly authorized by the Board.
- 3.3.8 Not to communicate with the public, press or other entities about Regulator business without authorization by the Board, unless it is about an approved statement/position of the Regulator.
- 3.3.9 Not to individually judge the Executive Director/Registrar, or staff performance, except from commenting on compliance with Board Policies as part of the whole Board's monitoring process.
- 3.3.10 Not to breach confidentiality regarding information to which they have access, at any time, including after the member's tenure on the Board or Board committee has ended, or fail to sign and comply with the Regulator's confidentiality agreement.
- 3.3.11 Not to sign a document affecting the Regulator unless authorized by the Board.

3.4 BOARD JOB DESCRIPTION

- 3.4 The Board is accountable to the Minister of Health and Wellness and the public and will ensure organizational performance through its focus on its job description consistent with Policy Governance™ and those decisions identified in legislation that the Board is required to manage and approve. Specific job outputs that distinguish the Board's own unique work from the work of staff are listed below.
- 3.4.1 Being the link with the people of Nova Scotia as well as a link with relevant interested parties.
- 3.4.2 Providing strategic leadership in the establishment of Ends every three (3) to five (5) years for the organization, that is those results for what people, at what cost. Ends are monitored every year for progress on achievement.
- 3.4.3 Writing governing policies which address the broadest levels of all organizational decisions and situations:

Ends: The organizational impact, benefits, outcomes; recipient's, beneficiaries, impacted groups; and their relative worth in cost or priority.

Executive Limitations: Constraints on the executive authority that establish the prudence and ethics boundaries within which all executive activity and decisions must take place.

Governance Process: Specifications of how the Board conceives, carries out, and monitors its own tasks.

Board-Management Delegation: Monitoring how the Executive Director/Registrar's conducts the role, uses authority, and is accountable to the Board.

- 3.4.4 Make bylaws that are consistent with the Regulated Health Professions Act.
- 3.4.5 Appointing the Executive Director/Registrar and approving the salary or other renumeration. The Board is the only entity who can employ, terminate, discipline, establish or change the conditions of employment of the Executive Director/Registrar. The Board is responsible to appoint in a timely manner a temporary appointee in the event that the Executive Director/Registrar position becomes vacant.
- 3.4.6 Monitoring the Executive Director/Registrar performance against evidence of progress towards achieving organizational Ends and compliance with executive limitations according to the monitoring schedule and as needed.
- 3.4.7 Ensuring the terms of reference for all Statutory Committees and Board Approved Committees are consistent with the *Regulated Health Professions Act*, including the committee's authority, which avoids any conflict with authority delegated to the Board, Executive Director/Registrar or any other Committee.

- 3.4.7.1 Appointing registrants to the Board, Statutory and Board Approved Committees, and public representatives to Statutory and Board Approved Committees and appointing a Chair and Vice-Chair for each Committee.
- 3.4.7.2 If necessary, the Board will also appoint such additional statutory members as are needed for a quorum when quorum for a statutory committee is not available.
- 3.4.7.3 The Board approves the eligibility criteria for referral to the Regulator's fitness-to-practise process.
- 3.4.7.4 Approving the direction for referring a registrant for a practice review and establishing a Practice Review Committee within 18 months of passage of the Regulations.
- 3.4.8 Establishing within Executive Limitations Policies the conditions that are unacceptable to the Board in the preparation and development of documents for the Board's approval, including: the code of ethics, standards of practice, mandatory standards as required by the Minister, competency frameworks, continuing-competence programs, practice guidelines, or licensing examinations (collectively called "regulatory tools").
- 3.4.9 Establishing within Executive Limitations Policies the conditions that are unacceptable to the Board in the preparation and development of documents for the Board's approval associated with paramedicine education, including: education program approval standards with criteria for Emergency Medical Responder, Primary, Advanced and Critical Care Paramedicine, re-entry programs, education for the purpose of expanding the scope of practice of a designation within the full scope of the paramedicine profession, or any assessments or education that applicants must complete to be eligible for a practicing licence in the licensing category applied for.
- 3.4.10 The Board will establish the period of time for the term of a licence, as well as the form and amount of professional liability insurance or other form of malpractice coverage or liability protection a registrant must have.
- 3.4.10.1 The Board will also approve the title, permit, or other active form for a registrant approved to engage in a professional activity, procedure or services as part of their individual scope of practice.
- 3.4.10.2 The Board will approve the requirements under which the provision of paramedicine services may be provided by a non-registrant through delegation or assignment of tasks by a registrant.
- 3.4.11 Setting fees payable for applicants and registrants, including the initial and annual registration and licensing fees, late renewal fees, and all other fees allowed for within the Regulated Health Professions Act, General Regulations and Paramedicine Regulations and Regulator bylaws and when those fees are to be paid.
- 3.4.12 In addition, to approving the process for setting, reviewing, and monitoring the annual budget under the Executive Limitations Policies, the Board will provide audited

- financial statements for the Regulator's previous fiscal year, and appoint a financial auditor.
- 3.4.13 The Board must publish on its website, within 30 days of approving the meeting minutes, less any matters discussed in camera, a summary of the agenda items discussed, and the decisions made at the meeting.
- 3.4.14 Identifying the Board's code of conduct and competency matrix for selecting Board and Committee members and setting up a process to identify registrants for appointment to the Board.
- 3.4.15 Conducting Board meetings in accordance with the Regulator Bylaws and any meeting rules approved by the Board.
- 3.4.16 Ensuring an Annual Report and Quality Assurance Program Report are prepared according to the *RHPA* General Regulations, posted on the website, and distributed to the Minister.
- 3.4.17 The Board will determine the remuneration and reimbursement for expenses payable to the Board and Committee members. RHPA Section 10(1)(b).
- 3.4.18 The Board is responsible for making decisions about client records held by a custodian and may order what should happen to the records ensuring the custodian is discharged from their responsibility once the order is followed.
- 3.4.19 Approving through the Required Approvals Agenda those decisions required by legislation, including but not limited to appointment of the auditor, setting amounts and form of professional liability insurance or other form of malpractice coverage or liability protection a registrant must have.
- 3.4.20 The Board will appoint registrants to vacated board positions and board members to vacated Chair, or Vice-Chair positions on the Board.
- 3.4.21 The Board shall make election rules and elect the Board Chair and Vice-Chair according to the process set out in the Regulators Bylaws.
- 3.4.22 The Board will do all such other lawful acts and things as are incidental to the attainment of the objects of the regulatory body RHPA Section 6(2)(c).
- 3.4.23 Reviewing the operations of the *RHPA*, the General Regulations and Paramedicine Regulations and making any recommendations to the Minister.

3.5 ROLE OF THE CHAIR

3.5 The Chair is an elected position from within the Board who is responsible to ensure the integrity of the Board's process and perform all acts related to the office (By-law 15.1(b)).

- 3.5.1 The authority of the Chair consists in making decisions that fall within the Board Governance Process and Board-Management Delegation, except where the Board specifically delegates portions of this authority to others.
 - 3.5.1.1 The Chair is authorized to use any reasonable interpretation of the provisions in these policies.
 - 3.5.1.2 Delegation to the Chair begins at the point when the Board has stopped defining its values in the Governance Process policies and the Board-Management Delegation policies.
 - 3.5.1.3 The Chair is accountable for any authority delegated by the Chair to another Board member.
- 3.5.2 The Chair has no authority to supervise or direct the Executive Director independent of the Board because the Chair has no authority to make decisions about policies created by the Board within Ends and Executive Limitations policy areas.
- 3.5.3 The Chair will ensure the Board behaves consistently with its Governance Process policies by ensuring:
 - 3.5.3.1 Meeting discussion content will consist solely of issues that clearly belong to the Board to decide, or to monitor according to Board policy, through agenda management.
 - 3.5.3.2 Information brought forward that is neither for monitoring performance nor for the Board's decisions will be avoided or minimized and always noted as such.
 - 3.5.3.3 Deliberation will be fair, open, and thorough but also timely, orderly and kept to the point.
- 3.5.4 The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Board and of the Regulator unless unavailable and use the meeting rules approved by the Board.
 - 3.5.4.1 Where the Chair is absent from a meeting, the Vice-Chair or, in the Vice-Chairs absence, some other member of the Board chosen by the members shall preside at the meeting.
- 3.5.5 The Chair as the Chief Governance Officer shall establish the parameters of the working relationship with the Executive Director/Registrar. The Chair shall:
 - 3.5.5.1 Be the channel through whom the Executive Director/Registrar shall report to and be accountable to the Board.
 - 3.5.5.2 Be kept informed on the Board related matters no less than monthly.
 - 3.5.5.3 Share with the Executive Director/Registrar the orientation of new Board members.
 - 3.5.5.4 Determine when the Executive Director/Registrar is subject to recusal for incamera meetings.

- 3.5.5.5 Assist the Executive Director/Registrar in their interpretation of the *Act*, General Regulations, Regulations Respecting Paramedicine, Bylaws or Regulator Policies when there is doubt about the interpretation.
- 3.5.6 The Chair shall be responsible to ensure security and maintenance of Board-owned files such as Bylaws, agendas, minutes and monitoring reports.
- 3.5.7 The Chair is one of four individuals authorized to execute documents on behalf of the Regulator.

3.6 RECRUITING CANDIDATES FOR BOARD AND COMMITTEES

- 3.6 The Board of the Nova Scotia Regulator of Paramedicine aspires to recruit candidates with the necessary competencies to serve on both the organization's Board and its statutory and other committees.
- 3.6.1 Board members are appointed as follows: paramedicine representatives are appointed by the Board, and public representatives are appointed by the Governor-in-Council.
- 3.6.2 The Board appoints paramedicine and public representatives to all of its statutory and other committees.
- 3.6.3 The Board approves the competency matrix used in the advertisement and selection of paramedicine representatives for the Board and committees, as well as public representatives but only for committees. The Board competency matrix includes:
- 3.6.3.1 Recruit candidates who have the following values and abilities:
 - Commitment to engage with role.
 - The ability to analyse information and reason.
 - Collaborative.
 - Commitment to fostering inclusivity.
 - Objectivity.
 - Ability to communicate effectively.
- 3.6.3.2 In addition, the selected candidates shall have, or be willing to learn about, the requisite knowledge and skills expected for their role, including:
 - Purpose of professional self-regulation.
 - Maintaining confidentiality.
 - Cultural safety and humility.
 - Procedural fairness.
 - Identifying conflicts of interest.
- 3.6.3.3 A diversity of perspectives amongst the candidates, including, but not limited to:
 - Indigenous identity.

- Cultural diversity.
- Gender.
- Ability.
- Age.
- 3.6.4 The Board will establish a recruitment and selection process that ensures compliance with its own policy on recruiting candidates for board and committees and ensures compliance with the *Regulated Health Profession Act*.
- 3.6.5 The Board shall ensure successful candidates are provided with an orientation to their role and have an identified mentor to assist them in their onboarding.

3.7 COMMITTEE AUTHORITY, STRUCTURE AND PRINCIPLES

- 3.7 This policy applies to any Committee formed by the Board, regardless of whether the Committee includes Board members.
- 3.7.1 All Committees, when used, will be assigned to reinforce the wholeness of the Board's job and never to interfere with delegation from the Board to Executive Director/Registrar.
- 3.7.2 Committees will not exercise authority over staff and will not have direct dealings with current staff operations.
- 3.7.3 Where the Executive Director/Registrar works for the full Board, they will not be required to obtain approval from a committee before an executive action.
- 3.7.4 The Board shall appoint all Committee chairs and members in accordance with the Regulated Health Professions Act, General Regulations and Regulations Respecting Paramedicine, as well as the Regulator bylaws. (By-Law 30.1)
- 3.7.5 All Committee members shall abide by the same Code of Conduct as governs the Board.
- 3.7.6 Except as defined in written Terms of Reference (ToRs), Committees will only speak or act for the Board when formally given such authority for specific and time-limited purposes.
- 3.7.7 No Committee has authority to commit funds or resources of the Regulator.
 - 3.7.7.1 Expenditures by any committee shall be limited to those funds approved in the annual budget of the Regulator, unless further approval of the Board has been obtained. (By-Law 30.7)
- 3.7.8 All Statutory Committees are responsible for the content of their written decisions.

- 3.7.9 Committee members are entitled to remuneration for their services and reimbursement for expenses in accordance with the Expense Reimbursement and Remuneration Policy.
- 3.7.10 When consistent with the *Regulated Health Professions Act, General Regulations and Regulations Respecting Paramedicine*, as well as the Regulator bylaws a Statutory Committee may direct the Registrar to take action or implement their decision in accordance with its legislative authority.
- 3.7.11 The Board subject to the *Regulated Health Professions Act*, General Regulations and Paramedicine Regulations may make bylaws establishing committees, in addition to those established under the *Act.* (*RHPA 12(1)(x)*)
- 3.7.12 The Statutory Committees include:
 - Registration and Licensing Committee
 - Registration and Licensing Review Committee
 - Complaints Committee
 - Professional Conduct Committee
 - Fitness-to-Practice Committee
 - Reinstatement Committee
 - Practice Review Committee
- 3.7.13 Board Approved Committees include:
 - Legislative Review Committee
 - Education Advisory Committee
 - Appointment Committee

3.8 EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT & REMUNERATION

- 3.8 Members of Board and Committees receive remuneration for their services and are entitled to reimbursement for legitimate expenses, approved by Board, actually incurred on Board or Committee business.
- 3.8.1 Those seeking expense reimbursement shall become familiar with this policy.
- 3.8.2 When attending in-person meetings, employees and volunteers are expected to travel by the most economical and efficient means possible. (i.e., economy class airfare).
- 3.8.3 The use of personal vehicles for business will be reimbursed at the Regulator's standard rate of \$.49 per kilometre. Reimbursement per kilometre covers all operating costs of the vehicle including insurance, car repair costs, depreciation, and car breakdown.

- 3.8.4 In the event of a car breakdown while traveling on Regulator business, reimbursement is limited to the allowable kilometres for the trip. Towing charges, repair costs and additional transportation costs to complete the trip will not be reimbursed.
- 3.8.5 Taxis may be used when the use of such transportation is justified and when other more economical alternatives are unavailable or impractical.
- 3.8.6 Individuals are responsible for making and cancelling their own hotel reservations. Toll-free numbers should be used whenever available. Hotel expenses will be reimbursed to a maximum of \$150 plus levy and HST. If the travel is related to attendance at a conference, the conference's room rate will be acceptable. Any exceptions must be pre-approved by the Regulator. Before checking out, it is the traveller's responsibility to review the bill for correctness and to pay all charges more than the Regulator allowances. Travelers are encouraged to take advantage of lower government/union rates where possible.
- 3.8.7 An allowance of \$50.00 per night may be claimed, without a receipt for private accommodation used.
- 3.8.8 Receipts are not required for meals. Meals will not be reimbursed when provided by the Regulator. Travelers may claim out of pocket expenses for meals (including gratuities) up to a maximum of \$65.00 per day when traveling on Regulator business. For partial days' expenses, the maximum amounts allowable are:

Breakfast \$15.00 Lunch \$20.00 Dinner \$30.00

- 3.8.9 Rental vehicles may be used where, in the opinion of the Executive Director/Registrar this mode of travel is economical and practical. All vehicle rentals must be for economy-class vehicles, unless three or more people are traveling together and/or when travellers have to carry excess baggage and/or equipment for business purposes.
- 3.8.10 Vehicle rentals must be with the most economical and safest vendor. Travelers are encouraged to inquire about and take advantage of discounts and free upgrades offered by vehicle rental agencies.
- 3.8.11 Employees and volunteers are responsible to purchase adequate insurance coverage for the rental vehicle and verify the terms and conditions prior to accepting a rental vehicle.
- 3.8.12 Other expenses are reimbursable provided they are legitimate, necessary, and reasonable travel expenses directly connected with or pertaining to corporate business. They may include:
 - Parking including metered parking.
 - Additional airline luggage fees.
 - Fax services.
 - Telephone costs for business purposes.
 - Laundry/valet service.

- Exchange rate and currency conversion.
- Traveller's cheque fees.
- Incidental expenses (i.e., tips and identified on the expense claim form).
- 3.8.13 Non-reimbursable expenses include:
 - Traffic and parking fines.
 - In-flight movies and entertainment.
 - Hotel room movies and/or refreshments.
 - Personal articles (i.e., toiletries, magazines, etc.).
 - Luggage, briefcase purchases.
 - Hairstylist expenses.
 - Air or rental vehicle phone usage.
- 3.8.14 When submitting an expense for travelling an individual shall within two weeks, submit a travel expense claims on the authorized form with necessary supporting documentation, including receipts and explanations as required.
- 3.8.15 Board and Committee members will be entitled to remuneration at a rate of:
 - \$25/hour when attending meetings.
 - \$25/hour to a maximum of 2 hours to prepare for meetings.

3.9 DISCLOSURE OF MINUTES

- 3.9 Requests for release of any Board and Board Approved committee minutes will be addressed in accordance with the following policy guidelines.
- 3.9.1 Board and Board Approved committee members receive the minutes of all meetings. The release of information by Board members is governed by confidentiality agreements signed pursuant to the Board's Code of Conduct policy.
- 3.9.2 The Board will publish a summary of the agenda items addressed and decisions made at a board meeting within 30 days of the date the Board approves their meeting minutes, except for matters addressed during in camera board discussions, unless the outcome of those in-camera discussions are disclosed in the regular board meeting minutes.
- 3.9.3 Upon request, the draft minutes of Board meetings will be provided to the Board's appointed auditor.
- 3.9.4 Board and Board Approved Committee minutes generally follow the Robert's Rules of Oder for appropriate content and format. They will be documented as follows:
 - Date, time, and place of the meeting.
 - Name of the organization.

- Type of meeting (Board, Committee Name, etc.).
- Name of the members that are present during the meeting.
- Name of the members who are not in attendance during the meeting.
- Names of observers/invited guests.
- Whether the minutes from the previous meeting were read and approved.
- A table identifying the name of the organization, meeting type (Board, or Board Approved Committee) date, time, means (i.e. virtual, teleconference, in-person) by which the meeting took place, a record of attendance for Board, or Board Approved Committee members, as well as invited guests, and their roles at the meeting.
- Paragraphs that identify the approval of the meeting agenda and status of the previous minutes.
- The body of the minutes identifies all main motions (including wording in which each motion was adopted or disposed of), secondary motions, all points of order and appeals.
- The body of the minutes includes a summary of significant discussion points, decisions, and actions arising from the meeting. This does not include verbatim accounts of the discussions, nor does it attribute the particular viewpoints of any specific individuals.
- For meetings or partial meetings held in-camera, the body of the general meeting
 minutes will reflect that an in-camera session occurred and if appropriate, a record
 made of any decisions/passed motions arising from that session. If the recording
 secretary is not in attendance, the Chair of the in-camera session will provide the
 general meeting recording secretary with the require wording for inclusion in the
 minutes.
- The minutes will be concluded with the time of adjournment. A motion to adjourn the meeting is not required provided the business on the approved agenda has completed and the meeting has reached its natural conclusion.

3.10 BOARD MEETING AGENDA AND YEARLY PLANNING CYCLE

- 3.10 The Board will ensure the meeting agenda is consistent with its own work. See Appendix 1 Sample Board Meeting Agenda
- 3.10.1 The meeting agenda will include time for documentation of monitoring compliance by the Executive Director/Registrar with Executive Limitation and Ends Policies and for review of the policies themselves.
 - 3.10.1.1 Monitoring reports will be provided and read in advance of the meeting, and discussion will occur only if reports show policy violation, if policies do not provide sufficient information for the Board to make a determination regarding compliance, or if policy criteria are to be debated.
- 3.10.2 The Board delegates to the Chair the authority to fill in the details of the meeting content. Potential agenda items shall be carefully screened to ensure that they relate to the Board job description, rather than simply reviewing staff activities.

- 3.10.2.1 Screening questions shall include:
 - 3.10.2.1.1 Clarification as to whether the issue clearly belongs to the Board or the Executive Director/Registrar.
 - 3.10.2.1.2 Identification of what category an issue relates to- Ends, Executive Limitation, Governance Process, and Board-Management Delegation.
 - 3.10.2.1.3 Review of what the Board has already said in this category, and how the current issue is related.
- 3.10.3 Throughout the year, the Board will attend to Required Approvals agenda items as expeditiously as possible. When an item is brought to the Board via the required Approvals Agenda, provided that compliance with all of the criteria in Executive Limitations has been demonstrated, the Board may choose to approve the item by maintaining the item on the Required Approvals agenda.
 - 3.10.3.1 An exception will be made only if a majority of the Board votes to remove the item from the Required Approval Agenda for discussion.
- 3.10.4 The Board will review a summary of relevant issues and trends from previous environmental scans and minutes prepared by the Executive Director/Registrar to introduce the Ends development work and to address risk management of the organization.
- 3.10.5 The Board will receive the Executive Director/Registrar update since the last meeting for their review and information.
- 3.10.6 The Board will conduct a thorough reassessment of Ends every (3) three to (5) years. The Board will review its Ends and reaffirm their priority annually prior to the establishment of the annual budget.
 - 3.10.6.1 The Board will determine if there is a need for external facilitation in this process.
- 3.10.7 The Board will request an updated environmental scan from the Executive Director/Registrar to introduce the Ends development and will review any additional environmental scanning data that may have been shared at Board meetings throughout the three (3) to five (5) years.
- 3.10.8 The Board will establish an ongoing process of linkage with owners and interested parties to gain an understanding of trends and issues in the external environment to assist the Board in its own work with reviewing and prioritizing its Ends.
 - 3.10.8.1 In addition, the Board will periodically engage with interested parties and other organizations as it may inform current and future Ends work as it relates to the owners.
- 3.10.9 The Board will identify its education needs, including education related to Ends determination (for example, presentations relating to external environment,

- demographic information, exploration of future perspectives which may have implications, presentations by interested parties, and staff) and education regarding the process of governing.
- 3.10.10 The Board will schedule regular review of the content of Executive Limitation, Governance and Board-Management Delegation policies. See Appendix 2 Board Meeting Agenda and Yearly Planning Cycle Schedule
- 3.10.11 The Board will schedule regular self-evaluation of the Board's own compliance with its governance and Board-Management Delegation Policies. See Schedule 1 Record of Policy Review.

3.11 BOARD LINKAGE TO OWNERS

- 3.11 The owners (Public) of the Nova Scotia Regulator of Paramedicine ("the Regulator") are defined as the people of Nova Scotia. The Board members shall be accountable to the organization and to its owners as a whole. The Board shall act on behalf of the owners as a whole and fully commit to its ownership duties throughout the reporting period.
- 3.11.1 When making governance decisions, the Board will maintain a distinction between their personal interest as a customer of the Regulator's services, and their obligation to speak for others as a representative of the owners as a whole. As the agent of the owners, the Board is obligated to identify and know what the owners want and need.
- 3.11.2 The Board will gather data in a way that reflects the diversity of the ownership. It shall meet, gather input from, and otherwise interact with owners in order to understand the diversity of their perspectives.
- 3.11.3 The Board will establish and maintain a three (3) to five (5) -year ownership plan, in order to ensure that the Board has intentional and constructive dialogue and deliberation with owners, primarily around the organization's Ends. The plan will include selection of representative owners for dialogue, methods to be used, and questions to be asked of the owners. The information obtained from this dialogue with owners will be used to inform the Board's Ends policy deliberations.
- 3.11.4 The Board members are accountable to the Board for participating in the linkages with owners as identified in the plan.
- 3.11.5 The Board will consider its ownership linkage successful if, to a continually increasing degree:
 - 3.11.5.1 When developing or revising Ends, the Board has access to diverse viewpoints that are representative of the ownership regarding what benefits this organization should provide, for whom, and the relative priority of those benefits.
 - 3.11.5.2 The owners are aware that the Board is interested in their perspective.

- 3.11.5.3 If asked, the owners would say that they have had the opportunity to let the Board know their views.
- 3.11.5.4 The owners are aware of how the Board has used the information they provided.

3.12 BOARD LINKAGE WITH INTERESTED PARTIES AND ORGANIZATIONS

- 3.12 Interested parties and organizations are defined as groups who have a vested interest in the Nova Scotia Regulator of Paramedicine ("the Regulator") but who may have competing and/or conflicting self-interests from that of the Regulator and the people of Nova Scotia.
- 3.12.1 The Board members will be accountable to the organization and to its owners as a whole whenever linking with interested parties and other organizations.
- 3.12.2 The Board will identify and review every three (3) to five (5) years a list of interested parties and organizations with whom the Regulator needs a good working relationship in order to share and enhance its role as "owner representative" in determining its Ends.
- 3.12.3 The Board members are accountable to the Board for participating in the linkages with interested parties and other organizations identified in the plan.
- 3.12.4 The Board will gather data in a way that reflects the unique contribution of the interested parties and the organization to the Ends work that addresses the needs and wants of the owners.
- 3.12.5 The Board will consider interested parties and other organizations linkage successful if it is understood how their contribution can inform the Board's Ends work.
- 3.12.6 When making governance decisions, the Board will maintain a distinction between the interests of the Interested parties /or other organization and the interest of the Regulator and its owners.

3.13 INVESTMENT IN GOVERNANCE

- 3.13 Consistent with its commitment to excellence in governance, the Board will invest in its governance capacity.
- 3.13.1 Candidates for Board membership shall be provided with information that clearly outlines the role of the Board, the necessary competencies, knowledge and skills as well as the Board's expectations of Board members.
- 3.13.2 The Board shall receive the necessary supports to assure governance with excellence.
 - 3.13.2.1 New Board members shall receive a complete orientation to ensure familiarity with the organization's mission, *Regulated Health Professions Act, General*

- Regulations and Regulations Respecting Paramedicine, Bylaws and the Board Governance Policies.
- 3.13.2.2 The Board members will have ongoing training and education to develop and enhance their governance capabilities.
- 3.13.2.3 Outreach mechanisms will be used as needed to ensure the Board's ability to listen to owner viewpoints and values.
- 3.13.2.4 External Reporting will be arranged so that the Board can ensure accurate, timely and adequate data provides evidence to support organizational performance. This includes but is not limited to the fiscal audit. The Board will ensure that a tendering process for the external financial auditor occurs at every 5 years.
- 3.13.3 Costs will be prudently incurred, though not at the expense of endangering the development and maintenance of superior governance capability.
 - 3.13.3.1 The Board will establish prior to the budget cycle and be accountable for an annual budget for its own governance functions, which shall include funds for meeting costs.
 - 3.13.3.2 Other appropriate costs may include Board members attendance at conferences and conventions, costs of fiscal audit and any other outside monitoring assistance required, and costs of methods such as focus groups, surveys and opinion analyses to ensure the Board's ability to listen to owner viewpoints and values.
- 3.13.4 The Board will establish governance process policies that will serve as measurable standards against which the Board 's will evaluate its own performance.
 - 3.13.4.1 Under the leadership of the Board chair, at least annually the Board will conduct a self-evaluation. As a result of this evaluation, the Board will establish a governance action plan with specific goals and objectives for improvement of identified areas.
 - 3.13.4.2 The Board members at the end of each meeting will evaluate their own performance and the performance of the Board as a whole against the Board code of conduct. The individual meeting evaluations will help inform the annual governance process review.
 - 3.13.4.3 The Board will monitor its adherence to its own Governance process and Board-Management Delegation policies regularly according to the self-monitoring schedule.
 - 3.13.4.4 With a majority vote, any policy can be monitored and reviewed at any time. However, at a minimum, the Board will both review the polices and monitor its own adherence to them according to the attached schedule.

4.0 GLOBAL BOARD-MANAGEMENT DELEGATION

4. The Board 's sole official connection to the operational organization, its achievement and conduct will be through an Executive Director/Registrar.

4.1 UNITY OF CONTROL BOARD-MANAGEMENT DELEGATION

- 4.1. Only motions passed by the Board are binding on the Executive Director/Registrar.
 - 4.1.1. Decisions or instructions of individual Board members, officers, or Board Committees are not binding on the Executive Director/Registrar except in rare instances when the Board has specially authorized such exercise of authority.
 - 4.1.2. In the case of Board members or committees requesting information or assistance without Board authorization, the Executive Director/Registrar can refuse such requests that require, in the Executive Director/Registrar's opinion, a material amount of staff time or funds or are disruptive.
 - 4.1.3. Only the Board acting as a body can employ, terminate, discipline, or change the conditions of employment of the Executive Director/Registrar.

4.2 ACCOUNTABILITY OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/REGISTRAR

- 4.2. The Executive Director/Registrar is the Board's only link to operational achievement and conduct, so that all authority and accountability of staff, as far as the Board is concerned is considered the authority and accountability of the Executive Director/Registrar.
 - 4.2.1. The Board will never give instructions to persons who report directly or indirectly to the Executive Director/Registrar.
 - 4.2.2. The Board will refrain from evaluating, either formally or informally, any staff other than the Executive Director/Registrar.
 - 4.2.3. The Board will view the Executive Director/Registrar performance as identical to organizational performance, so that the organizational accomplishment of Board stated Ends and compliance with Executive Limitations will be viewed as successful Executive Director/Registrar performance. Therefore, the Executive Director/Registrar's job contribution shall be the accomplishment of the Ends while maintaining compliance with the Executive Limitations.

4.3 DELEGATION TO THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/REGISTRAR

4.3. The Board will instruct the Executive Director/Registrar through written policies which prescribe the Organizational Ends to be achieved, and describe organizational situations and

actions to be avoided, allowing the Executive Director/Registrar to use any reasonable interpretation of these policies.

- 4.3.1. Through the establishment of Ends policies, the Board will direct the Executive Director/Registrar to achieve certain results. for certain recipients, at a certain cost.
- 4.3.2. The Board will limit the latitude that the Executive Director/Registrar may exercise in practices, methods, conduct and other "means" to achieve the Ends through the establishment of Executive Limitations policies. These limiting policies will describe those practices, activities, decisions and circumstances that the Board would find unethical or imprudent and therefore unacceptable, even if they were to be effective.
- 4.3.3. As long as the Executive Director/Registrar uses any reasonable interpretation of the Board Ends and Executive Limitation policies, the Executive Director/Registrar is authorized to make all decisions, take all actions, establish all practices, and develop all activities that are not otherwise required to be taken by the Board in accordance with the *Regulated Health Professions Act*, the General Regulations, the Paramedicine Regulations or the Bylaws. Such decisions of the Executive Director/Registrar shall have full force and authority as if decided by the Board.
- 4.3.4. The Board will never prescribe organizational means delegated to the Executive Director/Registrar.
- 4.3.5. The Board may change its Ends and Executive Limitations policies, by adding an additional level to a policy to provide further clarity to the policy. While the Board has the authority to do this, it is not recommended unless the Board has not been clear in its original policies. Adhering to the policy review cycle is the preferred approach.

4.4 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/REGISTRAR COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

- 4.4. The Nova Scotia Regulator of Paramedicine ("the Regulator") will pay its Executive Director/Registrar fair market value for contractual services provided within the context of fiscal responsibility to the organization. A committee or an outside source at the discretion of the Board will research comparable compensation and benefit packages in relation to the current contract.
 - 4.4.1. The Executive Director/Registrar compensation will be determined by a market analysis guided by a model that is approved by the Board.
 - 4.4.2. Benefits remain at market rate of compensation.
- 4.4.3. The process for contract review will begin one (1) year in advance of the expiration of the current contract with a decision on renewal six months prior to the expiration of the contract; or as specified in the current contract.

4.5 MONITORING ORGANIZATIONAL PERFORMANCE

- 4.5. Monitoring executive performance is synonymous with monitoring organizational performance against Board policies on Ends and on Executive Limitation. Any formal or informal evaluation of the Executive Director/Registrar's organizational performance may be derived only from these monitoring data.
 - 4.5.1. The purpose of monitoring is simply to determine the degree to which the Board policies are being fulfilled. Information that does not do this will not be considered to be monitoring. Monitoring will be as automatic as possible, using a minimum of the Board's time as that meetings can be used to create the future rather than to review the past.
 - 4.5.2. A given policy may be monitored in one or more of three ways.
 - 4.5.2.1. Internal Report: Documentation of compliance information to the Board from the Executive Director/Registrar, along with their explicit interpretation of the Board's policies, and justification for the reasonableness of interpretation.
 - 4.5.2.2. External Report: Documentation of compliance information by a disinterested, external auditor, inspector, or consultant who is appointed by and reports directly to the Board. The external party will first be provided with the Executive Director/Registrar explicit interpretation of the policy and justification for the reasonableness of interpretation. The report must assess the reasonableness of the interpretation of the Board policy, and compliance with it. Such reports must assess performance against policies of the Board, not those of an external party unless the Board has previously indicated that the party's opinion to be the standard.
 - 4.5.2.3. Direct Board Inspection: Documentation of compliance information by a Board member, a committee or the Board as a whole. This is a Board inspection of documents, activities or circumstances directed by the Board that allows a "prudent person" test of policy compliance, with access to the Executive Director/Registrar's interpretation and justification for the reasonableness of their interpretation.
 - 4.5.3. In every case, the standard for compliance shall be any reasonable interpretation made by the Executive Director/Registrar of the policy being monitored. The Board is the final arbiter of reasonableness but will always judge on the basis of whether a reasonable person could have made the interpretation, rather than on the basis of whether the Board agrees with the interpretation.
 - 4.5.4. For regular monitoring, each End and Executive Limitations policy will be classified by the Board according to frequency and method of monitoring according to the schedule attached.
 - 4.5.5. Upon the choice of the Board, any policy can be monitored by any of the above methods at any time.
 - 4.5.6. A formal evaluation of the Executive Director/Registrar by the Board will occur annually, based on the achievement of the Board's Ends policies and non-violation of its Executive

- Limitation policies. This formal evaluation will be conducted by cumulating the regular monitoring reports provided during the year and the Board's recorded acceptance or non-acceptance of the reports, identifying performance trends evidenced by that data and preparing a written report.
- 4.5.7. The Board will meet, in camera, with the Executive Director/Registrar to jointly discuss and finalize the written assessment.
- 4.5.8. The Chair will transcribe the Board's assessment of the Executive Director/Registrar and sign said written document.
- 4.5.9. The Chair shall provide the signed assessment to the Executive Director/Registrar, obtain the Executive Director/Registrar's signature on the document (as received), and maintain a copy of such document in a confidential file.
- 4.5.10. The Chair shall meet, in camera, with the Executive Director/Registrar annually to ensure the documentation has been completed as per the Board's instructions, only if requested by any Board member or the Executive Director/Registrar.

4.6 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/REGISTRAR RECRUITMENT AND HIRING

- 4.6. The Board is accountable for the appointment of the Executive Director/Registrar through the recruitment and hiring of a qualified candidate.
 - 4.6.1. The Board will hire a Human Resource Consultant to facilitate the process.
 - 4.6.2. The Board will work with the HR Consultant to:
 - 4.6.2.1. Design a recruitment strategy to assist in securing qualified candidates.
 - 4.6.2.2. Provide an updated job description.
 - 4.6.2.3. Specify the job qualifications and competencies.
 - 4.6.2.4. Review the top 3-5 candidates for interview.
 - 4.6.2.5. Develop a robust interview and reference check guide.
 - 4.6.3. The Board will appoint an interview team that includes at a minimum of the Chair, a public representative and one other Board member to conduct the interviews and recommend a preferred candidate to the Board for their approval.
 - 4.6.4. The Board will approve the top candidates following the interviews for whom references will be checked and ensure that one person from the interview team secures references.
 - 4.6.5. The Chair will make the job offer to the approved candidate and have a contract signed. The Chair shall engage the assistance of legal counsel throughout this process.

Appendices & Schedules

APPENDIX 1 - BOARD MEETING AGENDA AND YEARLY PLANNING CYCLE SAMPLE BOARD AGENDA

Board for the Nova Scotia Regulator of Paramedicine Board Meeting - Session (#) DATE: April 28, 2023 8:30 AM to 1:30 PM

Microsoft Teams meeting Information or Physical Location

Board					
Name	Positions	Term			
If the position is vacant	Chair, Registrant	May 26, 2021, to May 29 2024			
record "vacant" in this	Registrant	May 26, 2021, to May 29 2024			
space, or	Registrant	July 31, 2020, to July 31 2023			
if the position is an	Registrant	July 31, 2020, to July 31 2023			
appointment record	Registrant	July 31, 2020, to July 31 2023			
"appointment" after the	Vice-Chair OIC, Public	May 26, 2020, to May 24, 2023			
	Representative				
persons name.	OIC, Public Representative	May 26, 2020, to May 24, 2023			
	OIC, Public Representative	May 26, 2020, to May 24, 2023			
	OIC, Public Representative	May 25, 2022, to May 28, 2025			
	ED/Registrar, Exofficio	Regulator staff			

Guests			
Name	Positions		
N/A			

Note: Not every item on this "Sample Agenda" must be on every agenda but may be listed for purposes of consistency.

1. 5 minutes – (Chair)
Call to Order

Resources /documents include:

1.1.

2. 5 minutes – (Chair) Adoption of Agenda 2.1. Agenda -

3. 5 minutes – (Chair)

Adoption of Minutes

Resources /documents include:

3.1. Review of Minutes from

4. 5 minutes – (Chair)

Conflict of Interest

Resources /documents include:

4.1. Conflict of Interest.

5. ? minutes – (Chair)

Communications and Support (Information the Board requires from the operational side of the organization that will help to inform their work, such as environment trends (regulator changes with the EHS Branch), communication issues (response to the minister) and risks to the organization.

Resources /documents include:

5.1.

6. 60 minutes – (Chair)

Ownership Linkage - (to include presentations by or from owners or groups of owners, results of surveys, focus groups, etc.) This could also include round table with the Board, speaking from the ownership encounters they may have had. Public image and roles impacting the public.

Resources /documents include:

6.1.

7. 30 minutes – (Chair)

Board Education - (Pre-planned information on a topic that the Board has decided it wants to learn about, future perspectives, etc.)

Resources /documents include:

7.1.

8. 60 minutes – (Chair)

Items for Decision - (Place business arising from the last meeting requiring decision first. Identify for each item the Board Policy to which it relates.)

Resources /documents include:

- 8.1. Business arising from the last meeting requiring decision.
- 8.2. Ends (Development or refinement of Ends policies.)
- 8.3. Governance Process (Development or revision of policies; work arising from any items that the Board has taken on as it won direct task.)
- 8.4. Executive Limitations (Development or revision of policies. Decisions that the Board must make because it has prohibited the Executive Director/Registrar from doing so in its Executive Limitations.)
- 8.5. Board-Management Delegation (Development or revision of policies)

9. 2 minutes – (Chair)

Required Approvals Agenda - (Items that the Board has previously delegated to the Executive Director/Registrar, but that an external authority requires the Board to "approve". The entire Required Approvals Agenda is adopted by one motion, without discussion, following examination of monitoring evidence that board criteria related to the discussion have been met. An item can be removed from the Required Approval Agenda for discussion only by a motion carried by a majority vote.)

Resources /documents include:

9.1.

10. TBD minutes – (Chair)

Monitoring ED/Registrar Performance (Ends and Executive Limitations) – (Affirmation that monitoring reports received since last meeting show compliance. This section should be very brief. Discussion is required only if a majority of the Board has concerns about the integrity of the monitoring report; do not feel adequate data has been provided to show compliance with a reasonable interpretation of the policy; or if there is non-compliance with a policy.)

Review and Discussion

Resources /documents include:

10.1.

11. TBD minutes – (Chair)

Monitoring Board Performance – (Self-monitoring of Governance Process policies scheduled for this meeting.) Regular review of the content of a policy may also be scheduled

for the same meeting in which it is monitored, usually no more than once a year for each policy. While it is convenient to do these two activities close to one another in the agenda, do not confuse reviewing the policy content with monitoring compliance with the policy. The are two separate and distinct tasks.)

Review and Discussion

Resources /documents include:

11.1.

12. TBD minutes – (Chair)

Information Requested by the Board – (Include here any items about which the Board has indicated in its policy on "Communications and Support to the Board" that it wishes to be informed, but which do not fall into the categories of monitoring, or information that is background for decisions. Be careful not to get into monitoring or decision-making here.) Review and Approval

Resources /documents include:

12.1.

13. TBD minutes – (Chair)

Self-evaluation of Governance Process at this meeting (How do you rate yourself this meeting as to how well you followed the governing style to which you have committed yourself?)

Review and Approval

Resources /documents include:

13.1.

14. 1 minutes – (Chair)

Adjournment

Note: "Nice to know" information was sent to the Board under separate cover on (date).

APPENDIX 2 – SAMPLE BOARD MEETING AGENDA AND YEARLY PLANNING CYCLE SCHEDULE

	June	September	November	January	May
Planned Linkage with Owner		Focus Groups with owners (outside of Board meeting)	1) Discussion of results from focus groups 2) Focus Groups with owners (outside of Board meeting)	Collection of additional owner info identified in May (outside of meeting)	Discussion of additional owner input
Board Education				1) Presentation by expert on future of the industry 2) Presentation by staff on implications of technology	Environmental Scan from ED/R
Ends Decisions	Initial review of ENS policies		Final review of ENDS policies and amend as necessary		
Governance Process Decisions	1) Develop ownership linkage plan for the year 2) Routine Content Review GP 9, 10 & 11	Determine Board education needs for the year.	Routine Content Review GP 1, 2, 3 & 4	1)Identify further ownership linkage information needed 2) Develop plan for orientation of new members joining Board in October	1) Orientation of new Board members to Policy Governance & to organizational issues 2) Routine Content Review GP 5, 6,7 & 8
Executive Limitations Decisions	Routine Content Review EL 2.9 to 2.11	Routine Content Review EL 2.12 to 2.14	Routine Content Review EL 2.0 to 2.2	Routine Content Review EL 2.3 to 2.5	Routine Content Review EL 2.6 to 2.8
Board-Mgmt. Delegation Decisions	Routine Content Review CMD 1 & 2	Routine Content Review CMD 3 & 4	Routine Content Review CMD		Decision re: ED/R compensation
Monitoring Ends & Executive Limitations	Monitor EL-2.9 to & 2.11	Monitor EL 2.12 to 2.14	Monitor EL 2.0 to 2.2	Monitor EL 2.3 to 2.5	Monitor EL 2.6 to 2.8
Self-Monitoring Governance Process	Self-evaluation meeting process, GP 9, 10, 11 & GP	Self-evaluation meeting process	Self-evaluation GP 1, 2, 3, 4, & meeting process	Self-evaluation meeting process	Self-evaluation GP 5, 6, 7, 8 & meeting process

APPENDIX 3 – BOARD MEETING SELF-MONITORING

The Board is expected to monitor its now performance at each meeting to identify areas for improvement and to assist in better understanding its role in the Governance of the Regulator.

Please review the following behaviours you may or may not have observed at today's meeting and response with a yes or no answer.

1.	Did we address conflict of interest matters appropriately throughout the meeting? Yes $\ \square$ No $\ \square$ Comments:
2.	We focused our time on the future, not the past. Yes $\ \square$ No $\ \square$ Comments:
3.	We made decisions which were previously delegated to the Executive Director/Registrar. Yes $\ \square$ No $\ \square$ Comments:
4.	We made decisions without ownership input. Yes $\ \square$ No $\ \square$ Comments:
5.	We rubber stamped decisions without having an understanding of the decision being made. Yes $\ \square$ No $\ \square$ Comments:
6.	We allowed a few vocal members to dominate. Yes $\ \square$ No $\ \square$ Comments:
7.	We used the Board policies to inform our discussion and decision making. Yes $\hfill\Box$ No $\hfill\Box$ Comments:
	Please identify how the Board might improve its performance. Please identify any educational needs in relation to Policy Governance that you might have.
	ank you for taking the time to complete the form and please submit through the email sident@nsrop.ca

APPENDIX 4 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST SCREENING TOOL

This "Conflict of Interest Screening Tool" must be reviewed in conjunction with the Regulator's "Conflict of Interest Policy" and its attachments.

This checklist is designed to help the Regulator and individuals who want to, or are serving on the Board, or a Statutory Committee of the Nova Scotia Regulator of Paramedicine, identify and appropriately address conflicts of interest.

It identifies conflicts of interest that could undermine the professional integrity or impartial decision-making of Board or Statutory Committee members.

The Board Chair or the Committee Chair will flag and review a "Yes" answer to any item, in consultation with the Registrar or legal counsel, as appropriate.

Answering "Yes" does not automatically disqualify an individual from becoming, or continuing as, a Board or Committee member. However, appropriately addressing conflicts of interest may include recognition that the individual should not be a member of the Board or a Statutory Committee.

Se	ction A: Employment and Contractual Relationships
1.	Are you currently, or have you been in the last 24 months, employed by the Regulator (e.g Regulator staff, investigator, etc)? Yes \Box or No \Box
2.	Are you currently under contract with the Regulator (e.g. consultant, legal advisor, IT provider, etc)? Yes \Box or No \Box
3.	Do you or your employer have a business relationship with the Regulator (e.g. vendor, service provider, etc)? Yes \Box or No \Box
<u>Co</u>	mments:
<u>Se</u>	ction B: Advocacy and Union Roles
4.	Are you, or have you been in the last 24 months, in an active union leadership role or elected union official (e.g. shop steward, bargaining agent, grievance officer, local president, etc. representing regulated professionals? Yes \square or No \square
5.	Do you represent or advocate for regulated professionals in employment or disciplinary matters? Yes \square or No \square
<u>Co</u>	mments:
<u>Se</u>	ction C: Related Organizations and Associations
6.	Are you, or have you been in the last 24 months, serving on the Board or employed by a professional association related to the paramedicine profession? Yes \Box or No \Box
7.	Are you involved in lobbying or advocacy on behalf of the paramedicine profession? Yes \Box

or No 🗆

8.	Are you a director, manager, or employee of a training or educational institution that offers programs for the paramedicine profession? Yes \Box or No \Box
9.	Are you involved in setting curriculum or policy at a training or educational institution that offers programs for the paramedicine profession? Yes \square or No \square
10.	Are you in a director, manager, or other leadership role at an organization that employs paramedicine practitioners? Yes \Box or No \Box
Co	mments:
Sec	ction D: Government Roles
11.	Are you employed by or contracted with a government department that oversees any legislation that influences the delivery of paramedicine services, the regulation of paramedicine or the business operations of the Regulator? Yes \square or No \square
<u>Co</u>	mments:
Sec	tion E: Legal, Financial, and Personal Conflicts
12.	Do you have a current or recent complaint or disciplinary matter before the Regulator? Yes \Box or No \Box
13.	Are you or an individual with whom you have a significant relationship involved in a legal proceeding with or against the Regulator? Yes \Box or No \Box
14.	Are you a registrant of another regulated health profession? Yes \square or No \square
15.	Do you or an individual with whom you have a significant relationship have a financial interest that could be influenced by decisions made by this Board? Yes \square or No \square
Co	mments:
<u>Sec</u>	tion F: Perceived Conflicts
16.	Do you have a significant relationship with any individual currently employed by or serving on the Regulator's Board? Yes \Box or No \Box
17.	Would a reasonable member of the public question your ability to act impartially and in the public interest because of any of your affiliations or relationships? Yes \square or No \square
<u>Co</u>	mments:

Section G: Regulator's "Conflict of Interest Policy" & Attachments.

checklist, and then signed the Conflict-of-Ir Yes \square or No \square	nterest Agreement with the Regulator.
Comments:	
Signatory:	
Print Name	
Signature	Date

18. I read the Regulator's Conflict of Interest Policy and its attachments, completed this

SCHEDULE 1 – RECORD OF POLICY REVIEW

Policy # and Name	Date First Approved	Effective Date	Review date	Revision Date (if applicable)
	MM/DD/YYYY	MM/DD/YYYY	MM/DD/YYYY	MM/DD/YYYY
E- 1.0 Mega END & Sub-ENDs			05/29/2025	05/29/2025
EL-2.0 General Executive Limitations	07/30/2021	07/30/2021	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
EL-2.1 Treatment of Public, Registrants & Interested Parties	07/30/2021	07/30/2021	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
EL-2.2 Corporate Working Conditions	07/30/2021	07/30/2021	05/12/2025	05/12/2025
EL-2.3 Financial Planning/Budgeting	07/30/2021	07/30/2021	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
EL-2.4 Financial Condition and Activities	07/30/2021	07/30/2021	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
EL-2.5 Asset Protection	07/30/2021	07/30/2021	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
EL-2.6 Compensation and Benefits	07/30/2021	07/30/2021	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
EL-2.7 Communication & Support to Board	07/30/2021	07/30/2021	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
EL-2.8 Corporate Culture	07/30/2021	07/30/2021	05/12/2025	05/12/2025
EL-2.9 Development of Regulatory Tools, Education Program Standards with Criteria and Re-entry Programs	07/30/2021	07/30/2021	05/12/2025	05/12/2025
EL-2.10 Requirements for Legislation Governing the Regulation of Paramedicine in Nova Scotia	07/30/2021	07/30/2021	05/12/2025	05/12/2025
EL-2.11 Fees/Penalties/Fines	07/30/2021	07/30/2021	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
EL-2.12 Approved Registration Examination	07/30/2021	07/30/2021	05/12/2025	05/12/2025
EL-2.13 Membership on External Boards	07/30/2021	07/30/2021	04/06/2024	09/27/2024

EL-2.14 Reserve Funds	07/29/2022	07/29/2022	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
GP-3.0 Global Governance	03/02/2022	03/02/2022	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
Process/Commitment	00/00/0000	00/00/0000	0.1/0.5/0.00.1	00/07/0004
GP-3.1 Board Values	03/02/2022	03/02/2022	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
GP-3.2 Governance Style	03/02/2022	03/02/2022	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
GP-3.3 Board Code of Conduct	03/02/2022	03/02/2022	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
GP-3.4 Board Job Description	03/02/2022	03/02/2022	05/12/2025	05/12/2025
GP-3.5 Role of the Chair	03/02/2022	03/02/2022	05/12/2025	05/12/2025
GP-3.6 Recruiting Candidates for Board and Committees	03/02/2022	03/02/2022	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
GP-3.7 Committee Authority, Structure and Principles	03/02/2022	03/02/2022	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
GP-3.8 Expense Reimbursement & Remuneration	03/02/2022	03/02/2022	05/12/2025	09/27/2024
GP-3.9 Disclosure of Minutes	03/02/2022	03/02/2022	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
GP-3.10 Board Meeting Agenda and Yearly Planning Cycle	28/07/2023	28/07/2023	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
GP-3.11 Board Linkage to Owners	28/07/2023	28/07/2023	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
GP-3.12 Board Linkage with Interested parties and Organizations	28/07/2023	28/07/2023	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
GP-3.13 Investment in Governance	28/07/2023	28/07/2023	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
GP-3.10 Board Meeting Agenda and Yearly Planning Cycle	28/07/2023	28/07/2023	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
CMD-4.0 Global Board-Management Delegation	28/07/2023	28/07/2023	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
CMD-4.1 Unity of Control Board- Management Delegation	28/07/2023	28/07/2023	04/06/2024	09/27/2024

CMD-4.2 Accountability of the Executive Director/Registrar	28/07/2023	28/07/2023	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
CMD-4.3 Delegation to the Executive Director/Registrar	28/07/2023	28/07/2023	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
CMD-4.4 Executive Director/Registrar Compensation & Benefits	28/07/2023	28/07/2023	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
CMD-4.5 Monitoring Organizational Performance	28/07/2023	28/07/2023	04/06/2024	09/27/2024
CMD4-6 Executive Director/Registrar Recruitment and Hiring	28/07/2023	28/07/2023	05/12/2025	05/12/2025

